M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 05, 2004

9: 00 AM
TAPES
SFC-04 # 5, Side A
SFC 04 # 5, Side B
SFC 04 # 6, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Gary WI ken convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 9:00 AM
PRESENT

Senator Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Con Bunde

Also Attending: PHIL YOUNKER SR, Chair, Board of Trustees, The
Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority; STEVE PLANCHON, Executive
Director, Trust Land Ofice, The Alaska Mental Health Trust
Aut hority, Departnment of Revenue; JEFF JESSEE, Executive Director,
The Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority, Departnent of Revenue;
Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority Board of Trustees Menbers: TOM
HAVWKI NS, JOHN PUGH, SUSAN LABELLE, JOHN MALONE, and CAREN ROBI NSON;
M LLI E RYAN, Executive Director, Governor's Council on Disabilities
& Special Education, Departnent of Health and Social Services;
DENNY DEW TT, Special Staff Assistant, Ofice of the Governor; JOHN
BELL, Director, Division of Al aska Longevity Prograns, Departnent
of Admnistration; CHARLIE HUGA NS, State Veterans Affairs
Coordi nator; Governor's Veteran's Honme Advisory Council Menbers:
RONALD ELLER, JOSEPH FI ELDS, JI M BRASELL, RONALD HUFFMAN, ROBERT
MURRAY, WEVLEY SHEA, TED TAYLOR, JOHN W LKENS, CLAY GLOVE, ROBERT
(BERT) HALL, SR, Chair

Attending via Teleconference: There were no teleconference
parti ci pants.

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

SFC- 03 (1) 02/ 05/ 04



THE ALASKA MENTAL HEALTH TRUST AUTHORI TY PRESENTATI ON
VETERAN S HOVE: PRQJECT UPDATE

The Committee heard presentations from the Alaska Mental health
Trust Authority and an update on the status of an Al aska Veteran's
Honme in Pal mer.

#

The Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority
Presentation

PH L YOUNKER SR., Chair, Board of Trustees, The Al aska Mntal
Health Trust Authority, introduced the attending nenbers of the
Board of Trustees as follows: JOHAN PUGH TOM HAVWKINS; JOHN MALONE
and CAREN ROBI NSON. Board nembers not in attendance, he conti nued
are Nel son Page and Susan LaBell e.

M. Younker noted that Menbers' packets contain "The Al aska Menta

Heal th Trust Authority (AWVHTA) 2003 Annual Report [copy on file]
whi ch, he noted, provides financial details; the AVHTA's Fall 2003
newsl etter, "Trustworthy" [copy on file]; and a flowhart titled
"AVHTA FY 06/ 07 Budget Recommendation Pl anning Process - draft”
[copy on file]. He communicated that the flowhart portrays a new
budgetary process that the Trustees and AMHTA staff have devel oped
and that the newsletter contains an insert titled "inside
Trustworthy, Budget Recommendations - Fall 2003)" [copy on file]
whi ch portrays the FY 05 Budget Recommendations. He read fromthe
"AVHTA Presentation to the Senate Finance Commttee," report [copy
on file] dated February 5, 2004, as foll ows.

Hi story of Trust Formation
*Litigation (related to breach of Mental Health
Enabling Act trust established by Congress in 1956)
ongoi ng for 13 years
*State woul d have been required to reconstitute
the old Trust
*MIlions of dollars in litigation costs
*MIllions in | ost resource devel opnent opportunities
*Paral yzed and fractured nmental health conmunity

Key Terns of Settl enent
*Trust Authority free to use Trust resources to
act as a catalyst for change
*Trust Authority funding recommendati ons consi dered

SFC- 03 (2) 02/ 05/ 04



in a single appropriation bil

*Trust Authority to aid in conprehensive planning
for nmental health program

*Mental Health Trust Lands and associ ated state
| ands rel eased for devel opnent

M. Younker stated that during the years that the State "ignored”
the fact that the Trust had been federally established, it disposed
of a lot of designated Trust |and. However, he noted that as per
the 1995 settlenment of the Trust's |awsuit against the State, Trust
| and that had not been di sposed of; $200,000; and the right to re-
select land to provide the Trust with a total of one mllion acres
of land, as per the original agreenent, was awarded. He inforned
the Conmttee that the State's thirteen-year action of denying the
Trust's rights was "very expensive" to the Trust as it was unable
to develop its resources during that tinme and, therefore, was
unable to provide for its beneficiaries.

M. Younker stated that AVHTA would prefer a single appropriations
bill because it would enable the Trust to track itens.

The Trust Beneficiaries

*People with nental illness

*Peopl e with devel opnental disabilities

*Peopl e with Al coholism other addictions

*People with Al zhei ner’s di sease & other denentia

M. Younker stated that the Trust serves these four groups of
beneficiaries, and he noted that, oftentines, individuals being
served are "crossovers" fromone group to another.

Four Boards Advi se the Trust

*Al aska Mental Heal th Board

*Advi sory Board on Al coholism & Drug Abuse

*Governor’s Council on Disabilities & Speci al
Educati on

*Al aska Conmi ssion on Agi ng

The Four Advisory Boards have been engaged in a

col | aborative effort with the Division of Behavioral
Health to oversee a federal CWMS grant for planning
and i nplementation of a service delivery systemfor
individuals with a Traumatic Brain Injury.

M. Younker stated that these Boards were established upon the
State's settlenment with the Trust. He identified R chard Rainery as
the Executive Director of Al aska Mental Health Board, and Mllie
Ryan as the Executive Director of the Governor's Council on

SFC- 03 (3) 02/ 05/ 04



Disabilities & Special Education. He noted that the Executive
Director positions of the Advisory Board on Al coholism & Drug Abuse
and the Al aska Comm ssion on Aging are currently vacant.

M. Younker shared that the AVHTA is participating in a new federal
Center for Medicaid and Medicare Services grant programin order to
address the needs of individuals with traumatic brain injuries, and
he noted, "that Al aska has a fairly high incidence of people” with
this condition. Furthernore, he shared that a | arge percentage of
these injuries are incurred by children bel ow the age of three who
are injured as the result of being shaken "violently" by their
caregivers or as the result of a fall. Furthernore, he noted that
in Alaska, injuries of this type also result from such things as
not or cycl e and snow nachi ne acci dents.

STEVE PLANCHON, Executive Director, Trust Land O fice, The Al aska
Mental Health Trust Authority, Departnment of Revenue, shared with
the Commttee that the mission of the Trust Land Ofice "is to
protect and enhance the value of Trust |ands, and...to nmaxim ze the
revenue from Trust |ands over tinme." He shared that the Trust Land
Ofice's ten person staff is charged with operating and adhering to
Trust specific regulations; a |long-termasset nmanagenent strategy;
and "a prioritized annual work plan," all of which were devel oped
in consultation with the Board of Trustees. He stated that the
Trust Land O fice generates "spendabl e i ncone"” by establishing such
things as |land | eases and |icenses, and that the Trustees coul d use
this spendabl e incone to support the following year's Mental Health
services. He noted that the Land Trust generates revenues exceedi ng
$2.4 mllion annually in this manner. He stated that further
information regarding the Land Trust Ofice's operations are
depicted in charts |ocated on page three and four of the
af orenenti oned handout .

M. Planchon noted that, in addition, the Trust Land Ofice
"converts land corpus to cash corpus via such things as |and and
tinmber sales as well its recent undertakings to devel op revenue
frommneral and gas royalties.”" He stated that, to date, the Trust
Land Ofice has generated approximately $25 mllion by the
conversion of |land corpus to cash, and he noted that this noney is
deposited into the Trust Fund, which is the principle account of
the AMHTA. He voiced pride in the fact that the operational
expenses of the Trust Land Ofice average | ess than 15 percent of
t he budget, annually. He stated that the Trust Land O fice operates
efficiently with mninmal staffing because it "makes strategic use
of public and private contractors,” who are experts in their field,
to provide project resources.

M. Planchon stated that during the past nine years, the Trust Land

SFC- 03 (4) 02/ 05/ 04



O fice has generated revenue from the entirety of its resource
categories including the sale of 200 million board feet of tinber
and the | easing of one tenth, or 100,000 acres, of the Trust's |and
for oil and gas devel opnent.

Senat or Bunde observed that according to the information provided
in the chart on page three, titled "Spendable Incone from Trust
Land," the Trust's FY 03 projected inconme was |less than its actual
i ncone.

M. Planchon clarified that the chart is limted to depicting the
revenue generated each year that is classified as spendabl e i ncone.
He communi cated that because this is the category of revenue upon
whi ch AVHTA primarily bases the followi ng year's budget, it is
inportant to project it "very tight" as the budget for the
follow ng year is often established before the current year's total
revenue is realized. He noted that the chart titled "Trust Land
Ofice Operating & Capital Expenditures VS. Revenue Earned,"”
| ocated at the top of page four, depicts the total revenue earned.
Therefore, he noted that while the FY 03 spendabl e i ncone was | ower
t han expected, the overall funding revenue in FY 03 was sufficient
due to several nulti-year real estate transactions being solidified
and producing cash in FY 03 with additional assistance by an
accelerated tinber harvest in Thorne Bay, which generated nore
noney than anticipated. However, he cautioned that even though
revenue projections are tightly nonitored and forecast, the
unexpected spi kes, such as occurred in FY 03, and should not be
expected, as they are unpredictable. He conmunicated that the
noni es above the projections are deposited into the Trust fund
pri nci pl e.

Senat or Bunde voi ced appreciation for the conservative approach the
AVHTA undertakes in regard to its budget.

M. Planchon conpared the Trust Land O fice operations to that of a

smal | Al aska Native corporation with a mllion acres that has a
goal of wutilizing all its resources over tine. He noted that in
regard to mneral devel opnent, the Trust has supported such things
as inprovenents at the Fairbanks' Fort Knox Mne mll site to

convert it into a regional rather than a |ocal processor of ore.
O her noteworthy things, he shared, include the mneral |easing of
approxi mately 11,000 acres in the Livengood area for drilling which
woul d subsequently generate royalties; |and sales; coal |eases; and
bei ng i nvol ved in "nunerous comunity enhancenent projects” wherein
AVHTA owns a significant anmount of land in a community and of which
t he devel opnent woul d benefit both the AVHTA and the conmmunity. He
noted that the Sub-port area in the Gty & Borough of Juneau is an
exanpl e of this endeavor.

SFC- 03 (5) 02/ 05/ 04



Co-Chair WIlken asked the level of funding that the Fort Knox
facility mght provide, annually, to the Trust.

M. Planchon responded that annually, the Trust receives
approxi mately "$160,000 in distributable incone in the form of
rents.” He noted that once the mne returns a net profit, the
State, who has an operating lease with the mne, and the Trust
woul d begin to receive royalty nonies. He noted that continuing
el evated gold prices would benefit the situation.

Co-Chair WIken asked whether the True North Project mning
operation invol ves Trust Land.

M. Planchon replied that the True North Project is operating on
State | and.

Co-Chair WI ken asked the potential nonetary inpact to the Trust
were the Fort Knox mne to becone profitable.

M. Planchon estimated that, on an annual basis, "no nore than
$50, 000" woul d be generated through the three percent of net profit
arrangenent between the Trust and Fort Knox.

M. Younker noted that the Trust's nore recent |eases are
calcul ated on gross revenue rather than a net profit basis. He
stated that this nethod assures that sone royalty would be
gener at ed.

Trust FYO05

TRUST Distributable | ncone
Land O fice I ncone $ 2,400, 000
Trust Fund Payout 3.5% $10, 858, 800
Prior Year Lapse $ 2,317, 400
| nt er est $ 900, 000
Trust Projected Payout $16, 476, 200

VHTAAR Expendi ture
Recomendat i ons $11, 986, 900 Operati ng
$ 3,730,000 Capital
Total MHTAAR Recommendations $15, 698, 900

MH Budget Base FY 04 $136, 372, 000
IVH Budget Base FY 05 $125, 788, 000

FY 04 GF/ MH 99, 774, 200/ Al cohol Tax 21, 400, 000/ AHFC 1, 700, 000
FY 05 GF/ MH 93, 172, 500/ Al cohol Tax 17,925, 000/ AHFC 1, 800, 000

SFC- 03 (6) 02/ 05/ 04



M. Younker informed the Commttee that the information contained
in the chart titled "Trust FYO05," which is |ocated at the top of
page five in the handout, provides the Trustees wth the
i nformation upon which the budget is determ ned each year. He
reiterated that the Land Trust Incone specified on the chart is the
spendabl e i ncone rather than the Land Trust's total incone. He al so
noted that even though the total income is projected to be
$16, 476, 200, FY 05 expendi tures woul d anount to $15, 698, 900 because
the Trustees retain sone nonies to provide for energencies that
m ght occur during the year. Furthernore, he stated that the tota
Mental Health Trust Fund FY 05 budget "is a dramatic drop"” fromthe
FY 04 budget, and he pointed out that the primary causes of the
reduction are a decline in State general funds and a decline in
al cohol tax revenue as a result of the FY 04 alcohol tax funds
contai ning unal |l ocated FY 03 program funds. He noted that this was
because the program operated for only a portion of FY 03.

M. Younker declared that while the Trust's $12 nillion
contribution to its total operating budget is a "small drop in the
bucket,” the Trust's role as "a catalyst for change..makes a
tremendous difference." He declared that the Trust's prograns were
never intended to "supplant the State's general funds contribution
to AMHTA budget. As an exanple of the Trust being a catalyst for
change, he rem nded the Conmittee of its involvenent in the effort
to allow persons with disabilities to live in their own communities
rat her than being cared for in institutions such as the State-run
Har borvi ew Psychiatric Institute. He declared that w thout Trust
fundi ng support during the transition period, the effort would have
been unsuccessful.

Senat or Bunde pointed out that "traditionally," Trusts return five
percent as opposed to the AVHTA' s 3.5 percent.

M. Younker responded that the Trust's operation nodel differs from
traditional operation nodels. Continuing, he rem nded that the
Trust's operation nodel was originally based on a three percent
payout |evel, which he noted has been, over tine, increased to 3.5
percent "as assets developed.” He stated that the objective is to
maintain a |l evel of incone to assure a continuity of services, as
nost of the prograns operated by the Trust are three to five year
prograns as opposed to being one-year prograns. Therefore, he
declared that a | evel and continuous incone nodel is preferred to a
nore vol atil e nodel

M. Younker detailed the current operations nodel as one based on
the establishnment of two principal funds: the first being a
principal fund from which the Trust is limted to spending the
i ncone generated fromit; and the second being a principal reserve

SFC- 03 (7) 02/ 05/ 04



fund. He stated that the principal reserve fund is regulated to
equate to 400-percent of the year's payout; therefore, he noted
that the anmount required in the principal reserve fund changes in
relation to each budget, and that when the specified principal
reserve fund level is reached, any excess funds flow into the other
fund. He noted that there have been years when the bal ance of the
princi pal reserve fund was 50-percent of the obligated |evel, and
in that case, he continued, continuing efforts are nade to reach
the appropriate level. He also noted that while no inflation
appropriation is required, the flexible nodel allows for that and
ot her considerations to be addressed. He noted that while the
payout |evel evolving from this nodel was questioned by current
Cover nor Frank Murkowski's Adm nistration, the Ofice of Managenent
and Budget anal ysis [copy not provided] determ ned that the Trust
"actually paid out nore" over the long termthan were the standard
five-percent payout nodel in effect. He assured that two things are
in place to maintain programcontinuity: the first being that were
the principal reserve fund account to shrink to 200-percent of its
all otted anount, consideration would be given to lowering the 3.5
percent payout level; and the second action that has been
i npl enented to protect the Trust is that a specified percentage of
noney has been transferred fromthe Trust's Permanent Fund to the
Departnment of Revenue and placed into "an internediary account” in
order to protect the fund fromstock market volatility. He stated
that this internediary account is a nore stable earning account
than a traditional "full growth account."”

Senat or Bunde stated that AMHTA has established an account akin to
the State's Constitutional Budget Reserve (CBR) and that perhaps
the State woul d benefit from studying this nodel.

Co-Chair W/l ken conplinmented the AWVHTA on its financial nodel. He
concluded that the anount of noney specified for the principa
reserve fund is equal to four tines the Trust's annual expenditure
anount. He al so asked M. Younker for his professional background.

M. Younker stated that he is a finance busi ness professional; and
he credited his son with developing the Trust's financial nodel.

New Trust Budget Recommendati on

Pl anni ng Process for FY 06/ 07
*Col | aborative planning process with four Trust advisory
groups, state agencies and maj or partners.
eLimted nunber of focus areas targeting system change +
Part nershi ps, mni-grants and ot her ongoi ng projects.
*Enphasis on partnering to maxi mze and coordi nate funding
goal s across systens serving beneficiaries.

SFC- 03 (8) 02/ 05/ 04



M. Younker infornmed that rather than funding and tracking a
mul titude of small projects, AVHTA is devel oping a new budgetary
process that would concentrate on "four nmajor work projects” wth a
fifth work project capturing mscellaneous small projects. In
addi tion, he noted that another budget conponent woul d address the
Trust's partnership prograns with other entities.

M. Younker inforned the Conmittee that in addition to the four
af orenenti oned advisory boards, the Trust would further seek to
devel op four working groups consisting of individuals fromthe four
advisory boards, the Trustees, Alaskan Native groups, State
enpl oyees from departnents that would be involved in a particular
project, as well as other individuals to assist in the devel opnent
of a plan. He noted that as this effort is formalized, and a budget
that woul d be presented to the Board of Trustees for approval. He
noted that further information regarding this process is outlined
in a handout titled "Proposed New Trust Budget Recomendations
Pl anni ng Process (BRPP)" [copy on file], dated January 23, 2004. He
noted that these groups would continue to oversee their project
during its three to five year duration, and he continued, were a
project determned to be "off track,"” action would be taken to
revise it before it mght be elimnated.

M. Younker stated that in addition to program devel opnent, these
wor k groups woul d provide an opportunity through which AVHTA coul d
devel op partnership opportunities "on this level, too." He exanpl ed
therefore, that as a program is devel oped, partnerships could
i nclude the Trustees, departnents, private organi zations, Native
organi zations, so that, for instance, the $5 nmillion contributed by
the Trust could be |everaged, through these partnerships, into a
$25 mllion project. He assured that while the Trust would be
furthering partnerships to enhance its endeavors, the consideration
of providing Trust beneficiaries with prograns that provide quality
benefits would be a forenost priority.

Co-Chair WIlken interjected to note that a forthcom ng Senate bill,
SB 258 contains the proposed AVHTA's budget, including |anguage
pertaining to the biennial budget process that has presented here.

M. Younker asserted that the devel opnment of nulti-year projects
via the working and advi sory group process would align well with a
bi enni al budget approach.

JEFF JESSEE, Executive Director, The Alaska Mental Health Trust
Authority, Departnent of Revenue, explained that the Trust does not
"budget toward specific results"” such as the M ssion & Measures
exerci se. Instead, he stated, the Trust has begun "budgeting toward
target nunbers for specific areas of the budget and then trying to

SFC- 03 (9) 02/ 05/ 04



figure out, within those boxes, how we can to best serve people,
mtigate any damage that people mght suffer” by a reduction in
such things as services. He characterized the current budgeting
approach as a paradigmin that it switches the process "from ai m ng
at a result and then budgeting to get there to aimng at a nunber
and figuring out howto mtigate the damge that's caused usually
because the nunber requires reductions sonmeplace in the budget." He
shared that while the Trust does "a pretty good job" of identifying
new things and what they mght acconplish and concentrating on
nmeasurabl e outconmes and results; it is now, he conveyed, taking
into consideration the base, which "is the big chunk of the noney
that is spent on the nental health program™ Continuing, he stated
that the focus now "is to ook at how this base inpacts” program
beneficiaries. He stated that the Trust is currently gathering
i nformati on about how the FY 04 budget affected the base and woul d
use that information to determine the state of the base during FY
05.

M. Jessee stated that with the support of the Governor Mirkowski
Adm ni stration, "many very positive" Mental Health program
initiatives such as the reorgani zation of the Departnment of Health
and Social Services and the consolidation of the D vision of
Al cohol and Drug Abuse with a section of the D vision of Mental
Health were positive steps forward. These initiatives, he
continued, would result in better, nore conprehensive and nore
integrated services to Trust beneficiaries. In addition, he stated
that, in sone instances, cost efficiencies would occur and thereby
nore funds woul d be avail able for services.

M. Jessee voiced that the partnership nodel as explained by M.
Younker would benefit the Trust and the State by allowing the
maxi num support of progranms fromexternal entities such as triba
organi zati ons as opposed to using additional Trust or State funds
to support the program He asserted, therefore, that "the |ess
pressure there is on the budget,” the nore avail able funds there
are for such things as grant prograns and other nental health
prograns to which the partnership nmethod m ght not apply.

M. Jessee stated that the Admnistration's efforts to further
ef ficiencies have al so produced positive inpacts as the result of
shared services and adm nistration consolidation of nmultiple non-
profits that provide simlar services. He commented that in
addition to saving noney, consolidation efforts also result in
better services being provided.

M. Jessee informed the Conmittee that rather than being

appr ehensi ve about the concepts or ideas that are being furthered,
the concern arises from "the aggressiveness and the risk levels

SFC- 03 (10) 02/ 05/ 04



that are being undertaken in the budget." He stated that the
assunption that all the prograns woul d neet their expected outcone
"and predicting that in advance" affects the entire savings and
efficiencies in the budget as tinme advances. He stated that this
concern is beginning to appear in the FY 04 budget as outlined on
page 6 of the handout as foll ows.

FY 04 Budget

eInfrastructure cuts — will inpact direct services to
beneficiaries.
*Cuts to MH Budget Base + current DHSS FY 04 restrictions
(belt tightening) = Service Cuts (exanples)

—1.3 mllion in DD grants

—Reduction in legal support for DD in Bethel, Fairbanks

and Juneau offices of DLC.

—Hope Community Resources — cl osed apartnent for

energency rural housing.

—Qual ity Assurance funds (G-/MH) for DD cut.

—Care Coordination grants for seniors reduced by 20%

FY 04 | npacts
*Tri bal substance abuse programcuts 977.3 — 35% of all ADA
cuts while AK Natives are 20% of popul ation (and 40% of
treat ment popul ation)
*Rural ASAP prograns cut $908.0 — 70-90% no show rates thus
far in FY 04 for those prograns that have tried self-pay.
*10% to 25% match on al cohol grants

M. Jessee stated that the Trust is very supportive of saving
adm ni strative and staffing funds. However, he noted that as staff
reductions are being inplenented, inpacts of that downsizing are
beginning to surface in that such things as grant awards and
quarterly reports are being delayed. This, he continued could
negatively affect local non-profits. In addition, he stated that
reduced staffing is resulting in such things as project delays,
| apsed funds, and a | esser degree of program auditing.

Co-Chair WI ken asked that an exanpl e be provided.

M. Jessee exanpled that a partnership had been devel oped between
the Divisions of Mental Health, the Devel opnentally D sabl ed (DD)

the Infant Learning Program and the Trust wherein the Trust's
contribution of fifty percent of the program s funds was nmatched by
the three divisions. He stated that teans of subject matter experts
devel oped program expectation standards and results, and then the
teans net with program nmanagers and consuners to review and issue a
report that rated the agency on a nunber of the performance
neasures. He stated that the review provided a qualitative anal ysis

SFC- 03 (11) 02/ 05/ 04



that could be conpared to different program standards. Furthernore,
he stated that the reports were available on the Internet and
interested individuals could conpare one program to another or
gauge the effective of a programin a comunity. However, he noted,
the general fund match for this quality assurance program has been
elimnated in the budget and renegotiati ons have had to occur with
the Departnent and the Division regarding how this resource could
be mai ntained. He opined that quality assurance of a program"is
tricky as there is a tenptation to make a programlook like it is
wor ki ng." Therefore, he asserted that when two different entities
are responsible for a program it is nore difficult "to spin"
programresults. While supportive of restructuring and ot her cost
saving efforts, he stated that efforts are continuing to determ ne
how to reinstate such things as the quality assurance neasures.

M. Jessee stated that another inpact to the FY 04 Mental Health
base budget was the renpbval of $1.3 mllion in State funds fromthe
DD grant program He explained that while this noney |apsed with no
affect on services, it did result in a reduction in such things as
| egal service support to persons recently released from the
Department of Corrections' who need supportive housing and
assi stance in establishing Medicaid eligibility. He noted that many
of these individuals had been receiving "serious treatnents" while
i ncarcerated, and that these people, w thout |egal assistance, have
been repeatedly denied services followi ng their rel ease.

Co-Chair Geen clarified that inmates are not eligible for such
things as Medicare while in State incarceration, and that upon
their release they nust reestablish their eligibility. She asked
whet her support could be provided by caseworkers rather than by
| egal staff.

M. Jessee stated that assistance from caseworkers would suffice
were back-up |egal assistance available as he declared that the
eligibility re-determ nation process for social security is "very
chal I engi ng. "

Co-Chair WIlken noted that further and nore in-depth discussion in
this regard woul d occur when SB 258 cones before the Commttee.

Senator B. Stevens asked whether the Mental Health Trust Authority
budget or the State budget is being referenced in this discussion

SFC 04 # 5, Side B 09:47 AM

M. Jessee responded that the State settlenment with the Trust

SFC- 03 (12) 02/ 05/ 04



established a system whereby the Trustees recommend to the
Legi slature the level of State funding required for AVHTA services.
He continued, that were general funds not appropriated at that
requested |evel, the Legislature would be required to provide a
letter of explanation. He noted that the purpose of this
presentation is to comrunicate to the Legislature how Trust funds
have been spent as well as to explain the process regarding the
general fund level requested by the Trustees and the consequences
that woul d occur were the requested funding | evel unnet.

Co-Chair WIlken stated that, in order to nore thoroughly answer
Senator B. Stevens's question, this subject could be further
di scussed when the operating budget |egislation cones before the
Committee.

Senat or O son asked whether the State could be penalized were the
requested appropriation | evel not allotted.

M. Jessee responded that rather than a penalty bei ng i nposed when
either the Legislature or the Governor does not support the AVHTA
general funds request, the purpose of the provision in the
AVHTA/ St ate settlenment that requires a witten explanation of the
denial, is to encourage "policy and budget dial ogue between the
Trust and the Administration and the Trust and the Legislature.” He
stated that in addition to identifying areas of priority
m sal i gnment, the process has identified areas of comon i nterest
such as the desire to reduce programwait |ists.

Senator B. Stevens noted that |anguage on page eight of the 2003
Annual Report states that, "The total funding available for the
mental health trust budget in FY 2004 is $18,636,800 for an
i ncrease of 6.37 percent over FY 2003."

Senator B. Stevens questioned whether the FY 04 percentage rate of
change increases are accurate as, according to his FY 05 verses FY
04 calculations, the proposed FY 05 Land Ofice Inconme of
$2, 400,000 "is down 8.5 percent, Trust Ofice Payout is down 1.6
percent; Prior Year Lapse is down 28 percent.” He continued that
the FY 05 Total Trust Projected Payout of $16,476,200 is down 11.6
percent. Continuing, he stated that the total FY 04 Mental Health
Budget Base of $136, 372,000 as conpared to the projected FY 05 Base
of $125,788,000 "is down 7.7 percent with the Trust payout down
11.8 percent."”

Trust FYO5
TRUST Di stributable |Incone
Land O fice | ncone $ 2,400, 000
Trust Fund Payout 3.5% $10, 858, 800

SFC- 03 (13) 02/ 05/ 04



Prior Year Lapse $ 2,317, 400
| nt er est $ 900, 000
Trust Projected Payout $16, 476, 200

Senator B. Stevens reiterated that the projected FY 05 Trust Payout
of $16,476,200 as conpared to the FY 04 Trust Payout of
$18, 636, 8006 reflects a downturn of 11.8 percent.

M. Jessee responded that one mllion dollars of the difference is
the result of a change in the | apsed anount.

Senator B. Stevens agreed; however he pointed out that the Trust FY
05 chart depicts the FY 04 General Funds/Mental Health funds tota

to be $99, 774,200 as conpared to the FY 05 General funds/Mental

Heal th funds total of $93,172,500. He calculated this to be a 6.6
percent reduction. Therefore, he stated that the percentage rate of
change of the Mental Trust's contribution to the total fund "is a
greater negative rate of change" than the general funds rate of
change. He surmsed therefore that the State general funds
contribution "is expected to make up that difference in the
percentage rate of change."

M. Jessee stated that the reduction in the total market val ue of
the Fund during recent years conbined with the change in the Lapse
has negatively affected the Trust's total available payout. He
further acknow edged that the Trust' rate of reduction exceeds that
of the State's general fund contribution to the Mental Health
pr ogram However, he conmmunicated that from the Trust's
perspective, rather than there being the expectation that the State
shoul d "make up" the AMHTA contribution decrease, it is the AVHTA s
"job to work with the Legislature to neet the needs of the
beneficiaries,” as "it is a joint problem" regardl ess of whose
contribution has decreased.

Senator B. Stevens concurred; however, he declared that the State's
contribution is experiencing a |esser percentage rate of change
reduction than that of AMHTA. He stressed that this should be
revi ewed when the FY 05 budget is being considered.

Co-Chair WIlken agreed that this would be discussed when SB 258-
APPROP: MENTAL HEALTH BUDGET is presented to the Conmttee.

FY 05 Budget
*Medi caid — Federal Control and Support concerns
*Budget built on assunptions
—Ref i nanci ng
—Litigation around Medicaid
—Proshare viability

SFC- 03 (14) 02/ 05/ 04



—Tri bal agenda

—Cat chment area consol i dation

—ASAP program sel f - pay

—Restructuring of service waivers

—Cost containnent (really service cuts)
*Continued infrastructure cuts/Reorganization inpacts

M. Jessee informed the Committee that in the proposed FY 05
budget, the Trust is continuing its ongoing efforts to refinance
its public health progranms by maxim zing the use of federal
Medi caid funds. However, he continued, the consequence of this
action is that the State is becomng nore reliant on the federal
Medi caid program and nust adhere to federal specifications. He
conpared the process of the State becom ng | ess dependent on the
federal Medicaid programas a youth trying to becone | ess dependent
on his or her parents by noving out and getting a job "in order to
provide the environnment," or in the case of the State, the
services, that are required.

M. Jessee al so characterized the public health prograns supported
by Medicaid as "sw ss cheese" in that sonetines a single nedica

condition, such as Al zheinmers, would not qualify soneone for
Medi cai d; however, Al zheiners conbined with another factor, mght.
He clarified that State funds, in the fornms of grants, would be
necessary to support those individuals with Al zhei ners who do not
qualify for Medicaid. He cautioned that as State grant program
funding for services is reduced, the ability to provide services to
these individuals is reduced. He stated that the State's "working
poor "are also often ineligible for Medicaid, and were nedica

benefits unavailable at their place of enploynent, additional

burden woul d be placed on the Trust services.

M. Jessee noted that, "the FY 05 budget ... has significantly
i ncreased the tolerance for risk in devel oping strategies to reduce
the general funds." However, he stated that in devel oping the FY 05
budget, the Trust has relied upon and proceeded under the
assunption that many factors such as the |level of savings from
vari ous econom c efforts would be realized. Continuing, he voiced
that while some of the assunptions would work as planned, others
m ght not work to the extent of the expectations or within the
projected tineline. Therefore, he noted, when those deficits occur,
either inpacts would occur in other areas of the budget or a
suppl enental request would be forthcomng. He stated that the
tolerance of the risk 1is increased when such things as
consolidation of services occur. He rem nded the Commttee of the
negative effects incurred by a reduction in the infrastructure
where less staff is available to wite regulations, adm nister, or
nonitor prograns. Nonetheless, he stated that the Trust is very

SFC- 03 (15) 02/ 05/ 04



excited about working wth the Admnistration to develop
partnerships to deal with issues such as waitlist reductions and
other areas. In summary, he communicated that while the Trust is
optimstic about the positive outcomes that mght occur by
partnering with the Admnistration and Legislature to address
issues, the fact is that the Trust's beneficiaries are already
bei ng i npacted and would continue to be inpacted by infrastructure
changes.

Senator O son asked for a brief synopsis of how the Trust woul d be
operating two years into the future.

M. Jessee responded that were the State's fiscal gap renedied, the
Trust would be rebuilding its nmental health program and progressing
to serve its beneficiaries appropriately. Were the fiscal gap not
renedi ed, he stated, "that despite the best efforts" of the Trust,
peopl e would be dying or receiving institutional care and costs
woul d continue to spiral upwards.

Senat or Bunde conmented that the organization, "Psych Rights,"” had,
earlier in this Legislative session, distributed information to
Legislators pertaining to a lawsuit they mght further regarding
i nadequat e fundi ng of prograns. He asked the Trust's relationship
with this group as well as the Trust's position regarding the
merits of the lawsuit.

M. Jessee stated that Psych Rights is a nental illness advocacy
associ ation conprised of nenbers who have nental illnesses. He
stated that while the Trust has provided a grant to the group, that
fundi ng woul d not be used to support the group's litigation.

M. Jessee stated that one nenber of the Mental Health Board of
Trustees has been participating in the devel opnment of a resolution
to stabilize general fund funding and to provide sufficient
resources for the Boards to conduct their mssions as specified in
the Settlement. He informed the Conmittee that the Board of
Trustees recently approved the plan and, furthernore, the Board
aut hori zed M. Jessee to work with the Adm nistration to determ ne
whet her the resolution would be acceptable to them He stated that
even though the Psych Rights group's litigation has been filed,
were a consensus reached, the expectation is that the litigation
woul d be term nated

Senat or Dyson spoke to the danger of litigation of this nature as
it could serve to supplant the Legislature's "power of
appropriation.” He stated that the preferred avenue would be for
the individuals furthering these types of endeavors to instead run
for political office.

SFC- 03 (16) 02/ 05/ 04



Senat or Dyson asked whether the Trust views "soft brain injuries
from prenatal alcohol poisoning as a nental illness.™

M. Jessee stated that the Trust "considers those people our
beneficiaries because they have a nental health disability, broadly
defined."

Senat or Dyson opined that treating this condition through "the
nmental health nodel” is "absolutely off-base" because he conti nued,
this condition is "non- treatable.” He further questioned whet her
the Trust is reconmmending that the current |evel of fetal alcohol
di sorder treatnment is adequate.

M. Jessee responded that the treatnent is inadequate.

Senat or Dyson asked whether efforts are being taken to encourage
people to refrain fromdrinki ng when they are pregnant.

M. Jessee responded in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Geen conplinmented the Trust on the quality of the Annua
Report.

M. Jessee introduced Trustee SUSAN LABELLE to the Commttee and
noted that her invol venent on the Board has assi sted the Board in
its endeavors on rural and Native issues.

Co-Chair WI ken asked how the Trust is addressing Autism

M LLI E RYAN, Executive Drector, Governor's Council on Disabilities
& Special Education, Departnent of Health and Social Services
stated that the Council has furthered prograns to address the needs
of Autistic people and their support groups. She stated that the
nost common request was for the devel opnment of an information and
resource center to enable Autistic individuals to Iive at hone and
receive the help they need. She stated that both the Trust and the
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment have provi ded funds
to provide a grant to the Special Education Service Agency (SESA)
to provide this service on a Statew de basis. She stated that while
this is the beginning step and that further program assistance
woul d be required, the response to this resource has been positive.

Co-Chair WIken noted that an acquai ntance of his who has a famly
menber with Autismhas affirned that the SESA programis hel pful to
the famly.

There being no further discussion, Co-Chair WIken concluded the

SFC- 03 (17) 02/ 05/ 04



presentation on the Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority.
AT EASE 10: 09 AM 10: 10 AM

AT EASE 10:10 AM 10:11 AM

Veteran's Hone: Project Update

DENNY DEW TT, Special Staff Assistant, Ofice of the CGovernor,
inforned the Commttee that were the Pal mer Pioneers Hone converted
into the State's Veteran's Hone, it would culmnate a m ni mum of
twel ve years of his and many ot her people's efforts to establish a
Veteran's Honme in Al aska. He declared that a Veteran's Hone woul d
provide a nmultitude of positive opportunities to the Pioneer Hone
system to the State's veterans, and to the State's pioneers. He
shared that Governor Miurkowski has "directed staff to get this
done. "

M. Dewitt communi cated that as part of the on-going discussions
regarding the establishnent of an Alaska Veteran's Honme, the
Legi sl ati ve Budget and Audit Commttee conducted a study from which
three Veteran's Honme options were devel oped. He comruni cated that
the Adm ni stration considered the nost do-able of the three to be
to convert the Pal mer Pioneer Hone into a Veteran's Hone.

M. DeWtt noted that Alaska is one of three states, the other two
bei ng Del aware and Hawaii, that does not currently have a Veteran's
Hone; however, he noted that all three of these states have
subm tted applications to develop a Veteran's Hones.

M. DeWtt noted that, in the year 2003, there were 96 veterans
living in the State's Pioneer Honmes and this nunber provides the
State with a good base upon which to project the program He shared
that the Pal mer Pioneer Hone currently has 17 resident veterans and
22 open beds. He stated that this situation would allow the State
to nake the transition w thout displacing very many pioneers. He
stated that currently the federal Veteran's Hone fornula for Al aska
specifies 79 beds be available for veterans; however, due to the
fact that the proposed Veteran's Hone would use an existing
facility which has 82 beds, the State would be submtting an
application to increase the State's allotnment by three beds. He
voi ced confidence that the increase to a total of 82 beds woul d be
approved. He stated that the establishnent of a Veteran's Hone
woul d be a phased process with the first step of the process having
been the submttal of the application to the federal Veterans
Adm nistration (VA). He noted that this application was positively

SFC- 03 (18) 02/ 05/ 04



received. He commented that continuing discussions between the
State and the VA are occurring, and he shared that the VA is
anxious that the State secure its' funding of the project so that
the VA could match it.

M. DeWtt stated that the concept of transitioning the current
Pal mer Pioneer Hone into a Veteran's Hone is based upon the
commtment to assure that no pioneer in a Pioneer's hone would be
di spl aced and that were a veteran living in another Pioneer Hone to
desire to nove to the Palner Veteran's Hone, the acconmodati on
woul d occur on a space avail abl e basis. He assured that no resident
living at the Pal mer Pioneer Hone would be asked to rel ocate, and
he noted that Governor Miurkowski is upholding the State's current
policy in that no pioneer would be noved unless they initiated the
request.

M. DeWtt nmentioned that a request has been submtted to the VA to
allow for an adequate transition period, and that request is noving
forward. Continuing, he shared that the State would establish the
adm ssion criteria for the Palner Veteran's Hone, and that
criteria, he continued, would be simlar to the current Pioneer
Hone adm ssion policies with the additional requirenent being that
t he person nust be a veteran.

M. DeWtt specified that 75 percent, or 62 beds, of the Veteran's
Hone woul d be reserved for veterans, and he noted that the bal ance
of the beds woul d be available for individuals neeting the criteria
currently in place for adm ssion to the State's Pioneer Hones. He
summari zed the facility as "a honme that wll be focused towards
veterans but will also have a substantial nunber of beds avail abl e
for pioneers,” with the expectation that the mgjority of those
i ndi vi dual s woul d be fromthe Mtanuska-Susitna (Mat-Su) area.

M. DeWtt stated that the nunmbers have been reviewed and the
belief is that the honme could be transitioned into a Veteran's
Hone, "wi thout disrupting anyone,” in approxinmately five years. He
noted that during a recent inspection of the facility, the VA
"cautioned us that that m ght be too quick a transition period." He
understood that, while a formal response to the State's question
regarding an acceptable transition timefrane has not yet been
received, efforts are in play at the federal level to allow for an
open-ended transition period. He comented that the transition
woul d require approximately $3.5 million in facility upgrades to
address such concerns as fire safety, heating, and ventilation. He
noted that of the upgrade estimation, 65-percent would be paid with
federal funds with the State being responsi ble for the 35-percent
bal ance. He stated that this funding request has been included in
the Departnent of Health and Social Services section of the FY 05

SFC- 03 (19) 02/ 05/ 04



Capital Budget Request. He stated that upon the State's action in
this regard, the VA would be able to award the bal ance. He stated
that the VA has also infornmed the State that efforts are bei ng nmade
to accelerate the federal funding prior to the federal FY 05 budget
being formalized.

M. DeWtt declared that a tremendous anmount of activity is
occurring to further the establishnent of a Veteran's Hone in the
State. He shared that during an August 2003 visit to the facility,
the VA was "extrenely inpressed” with the State's senior care
soci al nodel that provides seniors with a wi de ranges of services,
from assisted living services to conprehensive care services. He
stated that this care nodel differs fromthe "traditional nedica

nodel " currently in effect in VA hones, and he shared that the VA
is contenplating the incorporation of sone of the State's care
nodel into its care nodel

M. DeWtt voiced the hope that the Legislature would authorize the
conversion of the Pal ner Pioneer Hone into a State Veteran's Hone.
He inforned that in addition to the budgetary request, the Governor
woul d be requesting sone additional |egislative changes. He stated
that the transition could be conpleted by the sumer or fall of
2005. He stated that the establishnent of a Veteran's Hone in the
State would provide a great opportunity to veterans as it would
enable themto receive the federal VA services to which they are
entitled, and he continued the establishnent of a Veteran's Hone
woul d be conbined in a context which would continue to serve the
State's pioneers. He also noted that a Veteran's Honme woul d al so
provi de an additional revenue stream to the Pioneer Honme system
that would strengthen the system on a statewide basis. He
characterized this as "a win/wn" situation

Senat or Dyson voiced appreciation for the efforts that have been
exerted in this endeavor. He asked whether a veteran's spouse woul d
be allowed to reside in the Honme with his/her spouse.

M. DeWtt responded that the system "envisioned" by the State
woul d allow a spouse to reside at the Home, as he rem nded, the
proposed adm ssion policy would all ocate 25-percent of the beds in
the Home to non-veterans. He further noted that the spousal
situation would be simlar to that currently in place in the
Pi oneer Home regul ati ons. However, he cautioned that while there
m ght be a case where an appropriate bed is unavail abl e or anot her
"abnormal ity" existed, efforts would be undertaken to acconmodate
t he spouse.

Senat or Bunde understood that the nonthly fee for resident care in
the Pioneers Hone is determned on a sliding scale of ability to

SFC- 03 (20) 02/ 05/ 04



pay, and that the average expense is approximtely $6,000 per
nonth. He asked for an estinmate of the expected nonthly charge for
t he Veterans Hone.

JOHN BELL, Director, Dvision of Alaska Longevity Prograns,
Departnment of Adm nistration, explained that currently five levels
of care prograns are available to Pioneer Hone residents, and he
noted that these progranms woul d be available to both veterans and
pioneers in the Veteran's Hone. He specified that a specific fee is
in place for each | evel of care.

Senat or Bunde asked for exanples of the costs of those prograns.

M. Bell responded that the average cost ranges from $2,000 to
$6, 000 per nont h.

Senat or Bunde asked whet her veterans would qualify for the sliding
fee scale for services that applies to pioneer residents.

M. Bell clarified that a veteran would pay "the same rate as
anyone else in the facility." However, he explained that the VA
woul d be responsible for a daily contracted per diem rate of
approximately $26.95 per day. He stated that the VA would be
billed, and that the VA paynent would offset the anount that the
i ndi vi dual woul d be responsible for.

Senat or Bunde asked for verification that the VA paynent woul d be
deducted fromthe individual veteran's sliding scale fee.

M. Bell qualified that rather than characterizing the fee as a
sliding fee, it should nore correctly be referred to an ability to
pay schedule. He reiterated that the resident would be responsible
for the entire fee; however, the per diem anount paid by the VA
woul d reduce the amount owed by the individual.

Senat or Bunde understood therefore, that an inpoverished non-
veteran who requires care anmounting to $6, 000 per nonth woul d pay
based on their ability to pay.

M. Bell concurred.

Senat or Bunde asked, therefore, how the fee for an inpoverished
veteran woul d be determ ned.

M. Bell stated that the fee for a veteran would al so be based on
the individual's ability to pay.

M. Dewitt inforned the Conmmittee that the State has agreed with

SFC- 03 (21) 02/ 05/ 04



the VAto "initially begin billing at a domciliary rate, which is
the lower rate.” He clarified that while rate negotiations would
continue, the current objective is to get the Veteran's Hone
oper ational .

Senat or O son asked whether any private funds coul d be used toward
the inprovenents that the Veteran's Hone would be required to
conduct .

M. DeWtt stated that no private funding is included at this tinme.
However, he noted that anong the requests that the Governor woul d
be presenting for consideration would be one to allowthe State to
receive private funds for the Hone.

Co-Chair Geen nentioned that she had attended sone of the initial
neetings that were conducted in Pal mer regarding transitioning the
Pal mer Pioneer Honme into a Veteran's Hone. She noted that a
depressing tone was evident at the beginning of those neetings;
however, she continued, as questions concerning such things as
whet her current and new pioneers would be allowed to live in the
home and how woul d the Veteran's Hone affect other Pioneer Homes in
the State were answered, the tone changed from negative to
accepting. She thanked everyone involved for the effort to further
t hi s endeavor

CHARLI E HUGGA NS, State Veterans Affairs Coordinator, inforned the
Commttee that the Governor's Veteran's Honme Advisory Council had
just net for the first tine as a group to discuss sone areas of
concern.

JIM BRASELL, a Wirld War 1l Veteran, was recognized for being
selected to represent the State at the upcom ng May 2004 dedi cation
of the World War |1 Menorial in Washington, D.C.

ROBERT (BERT) HALL introduced hinself as Chair of the Governor's
Vet eran's Honme Advi sory Council.

VEVLEY SHEA, Menber, The Governor's Veteran's Honme Advisory
Council, informed the Conmttee that his service consisted of
conbat mssions in Viethamfrom1965 to 1970. He stated that it is
a privilege to serve on the Veteran's Honme Advisory Council and to
appear before the Committee.

RONALD ELLER, Menber, The Governor's Veteran's Hone Advisory
Council, noted that he was from Kodiak and had served in the
mlitary from 1966 to 2000. He assured the Commttee that this is a
"good council" of veterans.

SFC- 03 (22) 02/ 05/ 04



RONALD HUFFMAN, Menber, The Governor's Veteran's Hone Advisory
Council, infornmed the Commttee that he had served in the United
States Air Force from 1961 to 1993.

M. Brasell infornmed the Commttee that he had served in the United
States Marine Corps during World War 11, from Decenber 8, 1941 -
1945, in the South Pacific.

Senator Dyson pointed out that the Battle of Coral Sea saved
Australia and was the "turning point in the Pacific" as it
curtailed the Japanese expansion and set the stage for "the huge
victory" over Japan at the Battle of M dway.

JOHN WLKENS, Menber, The Governor's Veteran's Honme Advisory
Council, informed the Commttee that he had served in the mlitary
from 1964 t hrough 1984 and had conducted two tours in Vietnam

CLAY GLOVE, Menber, The Governor's Veteran's Hone Advi sory Council,
informed the Committee that he had served in the mlitary from
1972-90.

TED TAYLOR, Menber, The Covernor's Veteran's Home Advi sory Council,
informed the Commttee that he had served in nunmerous capacities in
the mlitary from 1973 through 1976 including tours in Vietnam and
Canbodi a.

JCESPH FIELDS Menber, The Governor's Veteran's Hone Advisory
Council, informed the Commttee that he had served as a helicopter
gunner from 1965 to 1968.

ROBERT MURRAY Menber, The Governor's Veteran's Honme Advisory
Council, infornmed the Commttee that he had served as a nenber of a
fighter squadron.

M. Huggins stated that his mlitary experience includes 25 years
in the Arny.

M. Hall stated that when he was in the service, he was an Arny
Medic. He shared that another nenber of the Council is Nona
Johnson.

M. Huggins stated that other nmenbers of the Council include Victor
Karmun, Ri chard Franks, and George Gaguzis.

M. Huggins stated that in his capacity as State Veterans Affairs
Coordi nator, he is proud to represent the 71,000 veterans in the
State of Alaska. He noted that in addition to personal health
i ssues, the nost tal ked about issue and the thing that brings "the

SFC- 03 (23) 02/ 05/ 04



bi ggest glee" to a veteran is the prospect of having a Veteran's
Hone in the State. He noted that every veteran's organization in
the State supports the Pal ner Veteran's Honme concept.

SFC 04 # 6, Side A 10:36 AM

M. Huggins also infornmed that efforts are underway to recognize
the 6,000 Al askans who served in the Alaska Territorial Guard and
hel ped protect the State between 1941 and 1947, before Statehood.
He stated that these great Al askans have never been recogni zed nor
recei ved honorabl e discharge certificates. He continued that the
recognition of these individuals' service would also allow the 300
living GQuard veterans to receive VA assistance, including residency
in the Veteran's Hone. He stated that the ages of these individuals
range between 70 and 104 years of age.

M. Huggins next attested to the tremendous return on investnent
that the State receives by the Departnment of Mlitary and Veterans
Affairs' hiring of three Veterans Service Oficers. He stated that
because of these Veterans Service Oficers' efforts on behalf of
the State's veterans, $27 million of VA benefits are punped into
the State's econony. He urged the Conmttee to continue to support
the funding of these three positions.

M. Huggins also noted that there is a national Veteran's cenetery
in Anchorage and one in Sitka; the first having a projected 40-year
life and the latter having a ten-year life. He noted that
di scussions to address |ong-term denand are taking place and that a
variety of concepts have been identified. He stressed that while no
noney is being requested; setting aside land in such places as
Fai r banks, which has the third | argest concentration of veterans in
the State, could be a consideration. He stated that the Counci
woul d continue to provide information in this regard. He noted that
were a State Veteran's Cenetery built, the federal governnent woul d
fund "everything up to opening the gates."

M. Huggins infornmed that the State's Veterans Menorial Endowrent
i's now operational, and that the Council would be distributing the
grant application guidelines to comunities in the State. He noted
that the Council would be awarding up to $10,000 grants to be used
for the maintenance and preservation of war nenorials. He thanked
the Commttee for establishing the program and he noted that the
nonies in the endowrent are the result of private contributions.

Senator Dyson opined that the federal VA "often takes an
adversarial role or posture in addressing conbat related injuries

SFC- 03 (24) 02/ 05/ 04



and di seases for veterans" such as Agent Orange. However, he noted
that in nost cases, over tinme, evidence in support of the Veteran's
position that they were wonged is being provided. He asked the
Council's position on this issue, and al so asked whet her any action
by the Legislature could assist the situation.

M . Huggi ns responded that while the situation was once abysmal,
the situation has trenendously inproved in recent years. He noted
that "where the VA is headed and what it is doing is very
positive." He attested that while the treatnment of GQulf War
veterans is still being tested, the VA treatnent of Vietnam
veterans is encouraging. He noted that in addition to resource
shortages, another issue of concern is concurrent receipts in that
those people, who are retired and have a disability, get a
disability payment that offsets retirenment pay. He stated however,

that this issue is being renedied via a ten-year phase out program

Senat or Dyson asked whether the Legislature could do anything to
further the veterans' cause.

M . Huggi ns responded that the veterans realize that transitioning
the Palmer Pioneer Honme into a Veteran's Honme is the npbst cost
effective and deliverable option. However, he asked that, in the
future, veterans be provided an opportunity to present their
position when things concerning themarise in the future.

M. Hall added that at the Council's neeting, "the common thread"”
bet ween the nenbers was their "passion” to act on the behal f of
other veterans. He stated that the Council is receiving w despread
support that could serve to benefit the State's veterans.

Co-Chair W/ ken recognized the efforts exerted by citizens of the
State to further veteran's needs, and al so acknow edged the efforts
exerted by US Congressman, Senator Ted Stevens in support of
vet er ans.

M. Huggins informed the Committee that the Council voted in
support of the continuance of the Veterans Service Oficers'
contract. He noted that the funds to continue this contract are not
included in the State budget, and he urged the Commttee to provide
the required funding.

Senator A son inquired as to whether a 79 to 82-bed Veteran's Hone
facility woul d be adequate in ten years.

M. Huggi ns responded that the VA has dictated that the nunber of

beds be 79. He noted that the State has petitioned the VA to
i ncrease that nunber to 82 beds, which is the capacity of the Hone.

SFC- 03 (25) 02/ 05/ 04



He acknow edged that the veterans' population in the State would be
growi ng; however, he noted that veterans have the choice of |iving
in the Pal mer hone or other Pioneers hones in the State. He voiced
doubt that the VA would authorize a | arger nunber of beds.

Co-Chair WIken thanked the veterans for their participation in the
di scussion, and concluded the presentation.
#

ADJ QURNIVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 10:53 AM

SFC- 03 (26) 02/ 05/ 04



